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In 1994, Lord willing, $St. Peter’s Evangelical Lutheran
Church of Balaton, Minnesota will celebrate 110 years of grace
under our Lord and Savior®s protecting and guiding hand. St.
Peter’s began as a gathering of believers on the unforgiving
prairies of southwestern Minnesota. They were pioneers on the
outer edges of a new frontier, in a state that was less than
twenty vears old. For the German Lutheran pioneers those days
were easier for them than others because of the faith and trust
they had in their Lord to carry them through all things, good and
bad. It might be interesting and helpful to see that if we first
place $t. Peter’s beginnings in its historical backdrop and see
how the Lord provided for his Church in a new land.

Perhaps the earliest entrance of white men into what is now
the state of Minnesota is vecorded by the Kensington Rune Stone.
It was discovered near Alexandria, Minnesota in 1898. It claims
that Vikings first visited the area in 1362. Whether ov not that
actually happened is debatable. Perhaps more importantly in the
history of Minnesota was the opening of the frontier almost 300
years later by the French explorers, Pierre Radisson and Medard
Chouart, as early as 1648, These "were the first known white
explorers who passed the winter with the Sioux Indians in the
Mille Lacs Region" (Vexler 1). They were just the first in a
wave of French explorers and traders who came at first to find a
aquick route to the Pacific but later came to capitalize on the
rich trading, trapping, and hunting opportunities. Not far

behind them were missionaries looking to convert the many Indians”



souls as well as Lo serve the few white settlers.

In 1700 Le Sueur, a French trader, built Fort L’Huillier at
the Junction of the Blue Earth and Le Sueur rvivers near present
cday Mankato. At that time it was the furthest west outposts in
the wild Indian territory. There were only a few’other posts in
the wild region and most of them were on the Mississippi. Rivers
provided the main trade routes for the esarly trappers and traders.
The two widest rivers, the Minnesota and the Mississippi, provided
the easiest access to to get goods in and out of the state. The
Mississippi provided just about the only connection to the more
settled areas to the east and to the south. The land was slowly
becoming French domain as French trappers, traders, and trading
companies made theivy way into the wvaluable wilderness of Minnesota.

In 1671 France officially claimed the land around the Great
lL.akes including Minnesota at Sault Sainte Marie. Representatives
of 14 Indian nations were present when Sisur de Lasson rvead a
proclamation urging the the claim of all the Great Lakes region
for France. Daniel Greysolon was one of the first to do Just
that . In 1679 he entered Minnesota by way of Lake Superior. He
hoped to blaze a trail to the Pacific. Obviously he was
disappointed in that endeavor, but by following the rvivers he
penetrated to the interior of the land and claimed it Tor King
Louis XIV of France.

The territory was destined to go through several changes of
hands before becoming a state of the Union, In 1g62 France gave
the land west of the Mississippl to $Spain as payment for their‘

support during the Seven Years War and the French and Indian War.
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A& vear later France gave the land east of the Mississippl to
England It was signed over in the Treaty of Versailles as a
concession in the French and Indian War. Twenty vyears later
Great Britain would lose the Revolutionary War and give its
recently aquired half of Minnesota to the United States. In
1800 Napolean» Bonaparte forced Spain to give back the western
half of Minnesota to France. america then bought that region
from France in 1803 as part of the Louisiana Purchase. Finally in
1818 England ceded Northﬁ@n Minnesota to America.

It was about then that Britain’s influence in the tervitory
really ended. Britain had never really honored the Treaty of
Paris which turned owver the the eastern half of Minnesota to
America. They had continued to trap and‘trade in the Minnesota
area since they controlled most of the upper Mississippi and all
the trading done on it. The Indians usually supported their
efforts as well. Most advancements by America as far as they
were concerned only resulted in a loss of tribal lands.

In 1805, under the orders of President Thomas Jefferson,
Zebulon Pike laid claim to Minnesota. In 1806 he made a treaty
with the Sioux Indians for nine square miles at the mouth of the
St. Croix and 100,000 acres at the junction of the Minnesota and
the Mississippl Rivers. Fort anthony, later renamed Snelling,
was built on that second piece of ground in 1819.

Fort Snelling served as a base for further exploration and
protection against the Sioux Indians. A small settlement would
later spring up around it— the beginning of $t. Paul. Stillwater
however , was the first real settlement. It started in the nearby

St., Croix River VYallevy. The aguisition of the $t. Croix Valley
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and other lands from the Sioux Indians in 1837 opened the way for
lumbering. There was already a strong French-Canadian slement in
the area. Luhbering brought in new settlers from the New England
states, especially Maine, also Swedes came from Maryland, Dela-
ware, and Chio. 1In 1848 a land office opened in S$t. Croix Falls
and brought in a new wave of Germans, Swedes, and Norwegians.
This influx of people gave Minnesota a big enough population to
be established as a separate tervitory on March 3, 1849. On July
23, 1851 two treaties with the Sioux Indians, negotiated by Indian
Commissioner Luke Lea and the tervitory Governor Alexander Ramsey,
opened up most of the land in the territory west of the
Mississippi for settlement. On May 11, 1858 Minnescota was

admitted as the 32nd state to the Union.

1t was against this backdrop that two of the Tirst churches -
of the Minnesota $ynod had theiv beginnings. There were already
other Scandinavian Lutheran churches established or beginning in
the Minneapolis, $t. Paul, and Stillwater area along with a
Reformed church and one of the albrechtsbrueder (Koehler 125).
Oone of the first German Lutheran influences though, came in the
person of the Rev. F. Wilhelm Wier. He was a former Buffalo
synod man who came to $t. Paul after trouble at his last church
in Martinsville, New York. He arvived in St. Paul in July of
1855 and by September 14 of the same year Tvinity Ewv. Lutheran
Church had its first official meeting. They drew up articles of
incorporation and adopted them (Golden Jubilee History 304). st.
John’s of Stillwater was not Tar behind. An entry in Wier’s

diary veads, "A.D. 1855, on the 19th day of august, being the
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11th Sunday after Trinity, I preached the fTirst Lutheran sermon
in Washington County in the house of Albert Boese who had the
best house suited for this purpose" (GJH 329). The congregation
ovganized soon afterwards and called Wier to serve them fulltime
in November of 1857,

His successor at Trinity was none other than the famous
Pastor John C. F. Hever. Both of these men were part of the
original group that banded together to form the German Evangelical
Lutheran Synod of Minnesota in the spring of 1860. The other
pastors were Adam Blumer, Albrecht Brandt, William Thomson, and
W. Mallison. "Father" Heyer was the first president of the
Minnesota Synod from 1860-68 (Koehler 126). |

Those were wery stormy vears both for the country and the
state. In 1861 the country was split by the Civil War. aAlthough
Minnesota did not see any fighting within her borders she was the
first state to supply troops for the Union Army. Over the course
of the war 22,000 Minnesota men contributed to the Union cause.
Then, suddenly in 1862, tradgedy struck at home. The Sioux,
seeing a prime opportunity with so many men gone to war,
attacked the settlers on the western prairvies. The uprising was
sparked by a late payment of cash annuities and food promised in
Lreaties. The supplies and payment had been diverted because of
the war effort.

That was not the only factor though. There had been a history
of abuses against the Indians in the past. They had depended on
their hunting lands in the past to Teed their Tamilies. Now
those were gone. It seemed the Sioux were always being moved and

usually 1t was to a smaller plot of land. Game was no  longer
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nearly as plentiful as it had been in the pasfu The Sioux saw
recapturing their lands as a matter of survival. Another problem
was the infringement ofvatherﬁ Indian tribes who were settled in
ITowa. At times those tribes made advances onto land promised to
the Sioux.

So the Sioux banded together under Chief Little Crow. They
began a line of massacres and also took some of the settlers
hostage. Over 400 settlers were killed within a few days.
Minnesota militia men and fTederal troops led by Col. Henry Sibley
responded to the Sioux threat. Decisive battles were won on
September 23 and again on the 26 when over 2,000 Sioux were
surrounded and captured. At Montevideo 269 captives were released
by the S$Sioux after their defeat. In 1863 Col. Henry Sibley
pushed the hostile Indians even further away from settlers in the
west . Ewventually the Sioux were pushed back te the other side of
the Missouri River.

after the Indians had been expelled; the southwestern area
of Minnesota began to fill with settlers in earnest. Railroad
tracks were laid in anticipation of the resources that specific
areas held. Most of southwestern Minnesota is flat fTertile
prairie. A new strain of winter wheat was developed and it was
aquickly becoming a cash crop. To give an indication of the
potential in the combination of land and wheat consider these
numbers.

"The receipt of wheat in Chicago in 1885 was 19,226,000 bush-

els; in Duluth 14,880,000 bushels. The receipt of wheat in

1886 at Duluth was 22,425,730 bushels:; at Minneapolis,
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33,394,450 at Chicago,15,982,524.... In 1869 Minnesota

raised about 18,000,000 bushels of wheat; in 1886, about

50,000,000" (Vexler 104,
Wheat was the crop of choice that established Minneapolis as a
milling town. Because of it Minneapolis became a bigger milling
town than Chicago for many vears. Flour export alsc established
both Minneapolis and Duluth as major shipping ports. That kind
of growth and earning potential brought a large influx_ of new
settlers into Minnesota from the mid 1860°s to the 1920°s. For
example, Duluth’s population bstween 1880 and 1886 grew Trom
3,740 to 25,000 people (Vexler 104).

Minnesota wanted settlers and they began pouring in when the
state and the railrcad companies started advertising in Euvope.
Rail companies wanted to capitalize on the lines they had put
down across Minnesota. They plotﬁed out the land and offered
payment plans for new settlers. At that time whole counties were
often laid out by rall companies.

*The prairie counties in the western half of the state
were settled after 1870, hand-in-hand with the expansion of
the railroads. The tracks created a new transportation
network, and rails-not waterways-were the key to a town”s’
fortune. In southeastern Minnesota, towns subsidized the
rail companies with land and cash donations. In the western
prairies, on the other hand, the vail companies usually
created the towns. Few\“inland“ towns—off tLhe track3waver
existed, and as many as half the towns in the region were
controlled divectly by the railroads or their $ubsidgry Lown-

site agents. In Lyon County, [which contains Balaton] every




town was founded by a railvoad. Rail dominance and cash-
crop agriculture on a large scale led to the scores of small
elevator towns and farm trade centers, a Tew major processing
centers, and several transportation~dominated rail-division
points" {Harvey 106)}.
such advertising and methods brought guick results. Another
wave of immigrants started coming to Minnesota with dreams of
setting up new homes and lives in a country far away from home.
Only this time the numbers were much lavger than those that came
during the lumber boom. Unfortunately these settlers were also
fav away from theivr home churches. Most of them came Trom
Germany, Sweden, and Norway.
*The "immigrant century" spanned the period from avound
1820 to WWI. The first great wave of immigration to America
had crested on the eve of the Civil War: a second wave
covered the post-~Civil war period to 18%0; and a third the
1890°s to WWI. & peak vear for immigration from heavily
Lutheran lands was 1882... More Germans and Scandinavians
crossed the aAtlantic to America in 1882 than in any prior or
subsequent vear, there being a total of 250,000 Germans
...who came in that single vear. ...The many catalysts which
had long been at work in furthering immigration were still
operative: "american l@tt@r$; publicity bvachuresyand books,
tickets or travel wmoney sent by Tfriends or relatives,
returned immigrantis, the actiwvity of immigrant agents of
states or transportation companies, and the like. .« The

destination of the larvgest number of German and Scandinavian
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immigrants of the post~Civil War period was the Upper Missi-

ssippi River Valley, the plain states of mid-America, and

the Pacific Novthwest" (Nelson 255-57).

Aall  of these factors could have and probably did play a part in
bringing  over the group of German Lutherans who settled in and
around (near) the Balaton area. A nearby German Luthevan church,
Immanuel Lutheran of Tyler, attributed the move of German
settlers to the area as a result of the aftermath of the Franco-
Prussian War (GJH 335). Considering the close proximity of these
two churches it is not an unreasonable guess that the Germans
around Balaton may also have come to Amevica for the same reason
{GJH 335).

Most of these Germans settled on the unbroken prairie and
began to establish the farms that would provide their livelihood.
They loved their Lord, vyet they had no church and no trained
minister. But the Lord watches out for his Chuvch. He provided
for his sheep through the Minnesota Synod.

We looked wery briefly at the Minnesota Synod’s beginnings
earlier. Since it was a new Synod it was still fTacing the usual
problem that all new synods in Amevica had to face at first: a
reliable source of confessional pastors. They were not a large
enough or old snough synod vet to build and support their own
worker training school. They were at the mevrcy of whatever the
Lord provided. and again the Lord showed his merciful and guilding
hand to his church. The Minnesota Synod found a fairly reliable
source of missionary pastors in the famous "Pilgermission” school
neay Basel, Switrzerland. Chrischona, as it was also called,

opevated out of a medieval chapel overlooking Basel. It was one

(:}



of twe schools established by Christian Friedrich Spittler; a
German with a wvery mission minded outlook. The school concen—
trated on Bible study and practical courses as well as personal
growth in faith.

The Rev. J.J. Hunziker finished his schooling at Chrischona
in 1885, Three of his schoolmates went directly to Amevicas
whereas Hunziker’s fivst assigment took him to India. He did not
come into the states until the 1870°s (Koehlevr 127). His first
call in the states was to the prairies of Minnesota. The Minne-
sota Synod was aware of the many German Lutherans who were mowving
inte the southwestern part of the state so the Synod called

i3

Munzicker to be a "Reisenvrediger,” an itinerant missionary or
circuit rider in 1870.

Hunziker started serving two gatherings of German Lutheran
families in 1870 at Flora Township [St. Matthew’s] and Emmet
Township [Bethany]. The c¢ity of Renville was founded in 1878
very near those two churches. Hunziker did not live near Renvile
but on a farm in Posen township near Cottonwood and Weood Lake.
He drove his horse and buggy 30 miles to the churches on  Sunday
moy nings . St. Matthew’s ovganized in 1872 and Bethany Tollowed
in 1875. Hunziker continued to serwe those churches until 1879
{(GIH 268-72). He serwved in Hutchison as a wvacancy pastor for a
vear from 1871-72. From 1871-73 he alsc served the preaching sta-
tion the Hutchinson pastor normally serwved in Darwin. A& small
gy oup of lLutheran alse gathered around him in Posen township.
Several faﬁilies from Echo started coming and worshipping with

the Posen township congregation. Hunziker established them as
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St . Luke’s Lutheran Chuvrch on June 20, 1875 (GJH 119).

In 1876 the Minnesota Synod called Hunziker to begin morve
extensive missionary work in the field as more people were moving
into the area. They also began to pay him an annual salary of
$300.00 for this work (SPY 3). Hunziker is credited with starting
eight preaching stations, one of which was near Balaton. The
first serwice of the Minnesota Svnod vecovded in Lyon County was
the marviage ceremony of William Loeck and Carocline Welsand in or
near Ralaton on March 10th, 1877 (SPY 3). It seems probable that
Hunzikery may have begun to hold services somewhere in or near
Balaton before that, howeaver. He had been in the wicinity for
seven vyears by the time he performed the marvyiage mentioned
above. It seems doubtful that he would have marvied two bpeaople
he hardly knew.

It is from this date that the anniversary books dates his
first work in Balaton at 1877. It appears to be the only firm
date the author{s) had to work with. You get a strong impression
that they had very few vecords that were pre-i885. aAnother plece
of evidence that suggests mission work nay have been carvied out
to some extent in that avea before 1877 is vecovded by the history
of Christ Lutheran in Marshall:

"The county history states that the Tfivst Lutheran
pastors investigated the mission opportunities in 1876 and

1877 . Upon veceiving their rveport, the Minnssota 3Synod

called its first general missionary at its meeting in 1878

in the person of Pastor Christian Boettcher of Eitzen,

Houston County, Minnesota. He became the first Lutheran

pastor to rveside in Marshall, and his field extended as Tar
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west as Redfield, South Dakota" (GIH 195).
More than likely Hunziker is one of the pastors who made that
report. It would have coincided exactly with the type of wovk he
was called to do. This record tends to support an earlier date
as well.

fs  a result of that report Pastor Boettcher was called by
the Minnesota Synod to assist Rev. Hunzicker. He avviwved in
Marshall on December 20, 1878, Boettcher was trained at Chris-
chona as well, as were most of the missionaries the Minnesota
Synod called. Once churches were established theilr full time
pastors were usually trained either by UWisconsin oy Missouri
Synod schools. Boattcher took over the preaching station at
Balaton and is coredited with opening 27 preaching stations

including Balaton in the following counties of Minnesota: Lincoln

i

Lyon, Murray, Pipestone, Lac Qui Parle, Yellow Medicine, and
Redwood; also in Moody, Lake, Brookings, Kingsbury, Hamlin,
Deuel, Codington, and Grant Counties in South Dakeota. He served
the Balaton station from sarly 1879 till 1885,

What follows is a record of his report to the Minnesota
Synod in 1879,

"It was on the Friday before Christmas {December 20th)
1878, when I arviwved in Marshall, Lyon County. Finally, I
wish to vemind you that I cannot continue to liwve in Marshall

ost of liwing and

[

for any length of time due to the high

O

rental, and that I must support my Tamily with my meager
income . Furthermorve, ©the number of services Tovy my family

iz so few, and reading services are not easily arvranged,



because only a few Germans live in Marshall, and they have

s0 little interest in the presaching of God’'s Word that they

will not ewen atitend servicas. # movre suitable place to
live would be in the midst of a settlement of 12 Lutheran
families about 20-22 miles wast of Marshall. & homestead of

80 acres is to be had theve. It is not worth wery much, but

for a pastor, who is not a Tarmer and does not desive to be

one, which he should not nov dare not do, it would be good
enough., I it had a dwelling. Howevey , since the people
have been liwving there barely a vear, and are so poor that

they have no bread to sat, due to crop Tailure, therefore I

have suggested to the committee of three, for the considera-

tion of Synod, the following plan: 1. That the %Synod build a

home there, and lay claim to the 80 acres; or 2. That the

Synod build the parsonags for the congregation, and give

title to the congregation as soon as the amount invested has

besen repaid. In either case let it be done in Lthe names of

the Lovd..." (GIH 195,

The crop failure he spoke of probably was due to the grasshopper
plague of 1873-78. Knowing the length of this affliction il was
no wonder the small group he lived among could ill afford to
supply him with & parsonags.

His vrveport in 1880 indicated that the Synod acted on his
suggestion. They built him a house and it was being pult to use
not  only as a home but alse as a church and a school. Mot only
that, but children who were old encugh to rveceive oconfirmation
instruction went to liwe at his homs nsay Minneota wuntil they

finished their instruction. They were put to work around the
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house while they stayed there. Surely that must have been a
lively noisy household!

He was helped in these educational endeavors no doubt by
the work of My . George Lahme.

"My . George Lahme was a homesteader of the neighbovhood
of Brookings., South Daketa, and a bachelor. While during
the summer months Mr. Lahme would attend to his fields he
praffered “teaching®” to the lonesome life of the open
prairies during the winter months. Though Mr. Lahme was but
a “self made’ teacher; he had the veputation of “being a man
of no mean knowledge in veligion, languages, and arithmetic.
In & wagon pulled by a team of oxen, Mr. Lahme made his way
te the John Goltz farm wheve he drilled the Tundamentals
into the rvising generation of the later St. Peter’s Church”
(sPY 3.

Mr. Lahme supplied a wvery waluable seyvice Lo the pilonesrs
in and around Balaton. It seems likely that Pastor Beettcher met
Mr. Lahme while he was serving on the Dakota end of his rounds
and comnwinced him to use his talents at some of his preaching
stations. Mr. Lahme’s teaching davs ended though in 1884 when he
sold his oxen and started attending Dy . HMartin Luther College in
Mew Ulm as a student of theology. He graduated in 1887 and mowved
back to his homestead in Brookings. He began a church theve and
also started a civcuit that covered 250 miles and took him three
weeks to cover (SPY 5),

There is no reliable written vecord of the early services

held by either Hunziker ov Boeetbchear. The anniverssary booklets
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cite two different sources that supplised thew with theiv informa-—
tion: 1. Resolutions in the sarly minutes of the congregation
{which seem to be fairly scanty,) and 2. The memories of those
who were children at the time. Serwvices were held alternately
between the vallvoad depot and at least four members’ homes .
The homes were those of Ludwig Mitzner, John Goltz, August
Smerling and Johnm Bresning. The Mitzner and Goltz families

lived in & cluster of German Lutheran Tamiliss a few miles north

A _
ofﬂpn the voad between Ralaton and Marshall. August Smervling’s

house was south of town in Murray County, while Mr. Breening
lived first in town and later in a farmhouse novthwest of town.
Serwvices were probably held iﬁ both of his homes.

In the fall of 1884 the people at the RBalaton Station began
to seriously think about organizing into a church. At the same
time the Minnescta Synod took a great stride forward in the
establishment of a new school in New Ulm called Dy . Martin Luther
College. The fivst building, O0ld Main, was built and dedicated
November 9, 1884. 3School began that wery same fall. The school
had the immediate sffect on Balaton when Mr. Lahme envelled and

again in Touvr wesars when their Tirst resident pastor had Jjust

i€

finishaed his training there.

Under the gulidance of Pastor Boettcher a constitution was
drawn up during the winter of 1884-85. It was officially signed
on February 8, 1885, The *History of Lvon County® published in
1912 listed 18 men who signed the constitution. In 8t. Peter’s
Golden Anniversary booklet Pastor Bade published a list that

included an additional nine men who signed. They may hawve been

men who Jjust did not make it to the official signing but that



seems unlikely. The minutes of a mesting held on Julw Sth, Jjust
a Tew months later sebts the number of members at 20. 20 members
is much move in line with the original 18 names listed by the
county history. Perhaps  the additional names came at a later
signing. Fuen today some of our chuvrches still veoguive that wou
sign the constitution before you can be a voting membsar. Perhaps

. W
those men signed later under that pretense.”

The first thing St. Peter’s did as & congregation was buy

land. Siw and & half acres of that land arvre still owned by the
church today. They bought the land with a twofold purpose in
mind. Part of it they wanted to use as a camstery and the reast

was used as a Field to vaise grain Tor Pastor Bositcher®s horses.
40 acres were purchased Tovr $300.00. The minutes of & meeting on

July 9, 1885 written by Pastor Bosttcher ryecord that “Since

there were 20 members in the congregation, it was decided that

each should contribute %15.00 for the purchase of the land." [It

was on this evidence that I based my savrliev conclusion about the

number of original constitution signers.] #aAn immediate collection
vielded $57.00 and the rest was borvowed from the Bank of Tracy.

The remaining land is still used as a cemeievy plot on the wnorth

adge of Lown.

Because oF Tailing health Pastor Boeitcher could no  longer
serve Lhe congregation afhter 1885, MHone of the anwniversavy books
record who served the congregation during the three vear wacancy
that followsd. It is briefly menticned that in 18846 they began
renting space a he new Presbyterian church in order to  hold

t th
sevvices severy bthird sSunday so appavently they were still being



held. The most likely canidate for conducting those services was
Rew. William Scheitel who r@piaﬁﬁﬁ Munziker at Posen Township.
Socheitel served ab Marshall during the sams vears once Boebtchey
slowed down. Koehler mentions that since no men could bse found
at the time to veplace Boettcher, that "part of the Tield, indesd
had to be turned owver to the Missouri Synod® (195). That
apparently did not happen in Balatown.

The wacancy was Tinally filled Cctober 4, 1888 by the Rew.

Reinhold Posthks. He was a man of a rave bresd. He was one of
the few men who graduated from D.M.L.C. as a pastor. In those

davs the four vear school had a dual purpose of Lraining teachers

and pastors. It serwed this dual purpose until 1892 when the
Minnescota Svnod affiliated with the Hisconsin Svnod. aftey that

point all pastor training was carvied on at Morthwastern Collsge
in Watertown, Hisconsin. Rew. Posthks was one of the Tew pastors

who were trained by D.M.L.C..

It was during Poesthke’s pastorate that another wawve of
settlers began pouring into the area. The survounding country-

side began to take on a move civilized look. Yet it doesn’t seem
the roads improved much. One of the women of the congregation
who had babvsat for him occasionaly as a little givl vecalled how
one night he came back late from Tyler where he served two other
congregations. He told her he had tipped over in his sled twice
during the trip but sach time managed to vight the sled and

continus Oon.

Pastor Poethks serwed three obthey congregations basides
Balaton. anpavently Balaton still only had sevvices svery Lhres
weeks ewven though they had a full t pastor . In Marshall =a




groun had gathevsed together undey the name of St. John’s Evange-

lical lutheran Church. Pastor Poethke sevwved this group cut of
Balaton wntil his vebtivemsnt in 1900, Eight wvesrs later St

John’s Joined with Christ Luthervan Church of Marshall and c<alled

Fastor Posthke out of rvetirement to sevwe them. He accesoted and
served them another sewven vears {GIH 196 ). He also served btwoe
churches in Tyler, Immarnuel and Zion Lothevan of Island Lake
township. Immanuel continued to share a pastor with Balaton
until 1919, Zion dlﬁ the same until 1896 when they called Pastor

Ewald Lo serve them.

Since Poethke was 5t. Peterv’s Tirst vesident pastor the
congvegation had to assume Lhe responsibility of supplyving =a
Parsonage . The first year he lived on a Tarm a Tew miles out of

Lown . The next wear it is speculated thevy vyented a house that

they later purchased in the spring of 1892 in coopsration with

Zion Lutheran. In Decembsy of 1898 St. Petevy’s bought ocut Fion’s

third of the house.

SEt. Pebter®s was still meeting in the Prebyitevian church for

}:——-‘:

serwvices, but they Intendsd to bulld a church somedaw. fot

towards that end was Tinally taken in the annual meeting held
Dacembeyr 5, 1899.

"It was sugoested that the time is now at hand Tor us

to build our own house of worship. in response Lbo  Lthis

suggestion the congregation appeinted a committese to  obtain

pladges from the mewmbevs for this worthy cause and Lo report

o

&

he congregation at a mesting called sarly in the vaar

{19003, This commitbes is to consist of the pastor and Mr.



Carl Bollmann. The treasurer veporibed Lhat thevs was a sum
of $42.11 in the Ltreasury.” Minutes Dec. 5, 1899,

On February &, 1900, the congregation held a special
meeting to consider the construction of its own church

huilding. &t the reouest of the members present, the pastor

read the list of members and the amounts of their pledges.

Pledoss totaled $2110. Therefore, it was resclved Lhat Lthe
construction of the churoh should commence this wary  year.
& committes was chosen to Find & site for the chuvch. The

winmittes members are €. Bollmann, L. Luedbtkse, and &,
Hasss . " Minutes Feb. &, 1900 {SPY 7).
At ancther meeting held on March 12th it was veporied that a
building site had been purchased. &t the same mesting the
dimensions of the church wevre agreed upon.

By the fall of 1900 the church was built. It  was also
equipped with a homemads altar and pulpit along with a wood
stowve, a veed ovgan, and 150 chairs. The btowery was nob entively
painted howswer, till the next spring. The church was dedicated
b the new pastor, the Rew. Fshlau, =oon afber that work was
Finished.

Rew . Poethke was compellsd to vesign from his post because

of & threoat ailment in 1900. The Rew. acceptaed the call
to Balaton and began his pastorates in January 1901, Before thatl

he was doing Jewish and Polish mission work in Mew York City and
Mewark, New Jersey. Fehlau led the St. Peter’s and Immanusl
churches for thres and 2 half vears before accepting a call into

the Missourl Svnod.

While Rev. Feshlau was in Balaton the next building project

L9



began. Scoon atter his aryiw the congregation sold the parvrsonags
they owned. It was used afterwards for a millinery establishment
and a store was bullt next to it. In the meantime anocthey house

was bought as a stopgap while plaming went on to build a new

residence for the pastor. Two lots were chosen abt a meebing on

June 2, 1901 and purchased soon afterwards. &t July  15Tth
maet ing the building plans wevre pressnbed @l appyoved .,
Construction began and the houss was Finished that Fall. The

parsonage seyvved the congrss Foy A7 waavs before a different

¥
PAYSONage was purchassd and the old one was sold.
&fter Rew. Fehlau left, the Rew. J. Paul Scherf was sventually
called from Fairmonbt, Minnesotsa to bs the new pastor. Duving the
six month wvacancy that cams betwesen pastors Fehlau and Schert St
Peter’s was served by the Tamous Professor John Meyer From
D.M.L.C.. Iin 1918 Myver became the prssident of the ocollegs fTor

two wvears bhefore accepting 2 call in 1920 to teach at Wisconsin

Luthseran Seminary in Thiensville, UWisconsin. In 1937 he bescame
the president of Seminarwy. He serwved in Lhat capacity he-sevrved

until 1983, He is the author of the scholarly book, Ministers of

(RO Ho- Aot Fo.-

[

Christ, a commentary on II Corinthians

Few . Scherf beogan to serwvs 5t. Peber’®s and Immanusl churches

in Januwary of 1905, Tews waars later he also ¢ a
congregation in Avoo. The members at Balaton gobt wused to  the
sight of Pastor Scherf getting inte his ohuroh
and leaving Tor Tvilsv. His song were responsible for hawing the

horses hitched and ready to go. Neav the end of his pastovate he

bought and drove a Model T instead of his buggy. In addition to



all the obther duties he had, Pastor Schert alse van a small

German schoeol Tor the children of the congregation. His next

£

call toock him to Roscos, South Dakoba .

There was Jjust a short wacancy betwsen Scherf  and Pastor
Manteufel . Duving that time Rewv. Herv of Lake Benton was the
WARCANCY pastor. Few . Frederick Manteufel was installed in
Octobery of 1921. HNeither Tvler nov arco WeY s affiliated with 5t
Peter s any longer when Manteufel was pastor. Bub he Jdid start a
preaching station at Buchavd just a Tew miles west of Balaton.
Pastor Mantsufel began the transition from German to English at
St. Peter’s. In 1925 a ladies’ &id Society was organized For the
purpose of *furthering Christian education by singing. praving,

the fuvthevances of

the conovegation, and to

assiat  in

amnd moved to a Tarm near St.

wntil he died. Rewv. P. W. Spaude
from Lake Benton serwved as the wacancy pastor after Manteufel .
Rew . John E. Bade was installed on Movember 14, 1926 as the
next pastor at Balaton. Pastor Bade was a very talented and
srergetic man. He must hawve also been wery svangelical. 4
number of interesting things happensed while he was pastoer. Withi:
14 davs pastor Bade organized a Sundavy School . Previcus atbtempls

by Fehlau and Mantaufel to start one had both Tailed. Within a

waayr he had also organized a Halther e it was established

For Turther instruction of the wouth in Lhe Bibkle. & T small

pipse organ was Jdedicated in 1927 on Qobtobesy 1oth. Froft. B, OR.
Bliefternicht from D.M.L.C. spokse abt the BEW IO Fang




Bade®s witfe and also his son, arthur, plaved the ovrgan Tor
regular worship services. Rev. Bade could play the organ as well

and he beagan to gliwve ovagan lessons. He alsoe ovganized & church

orchestra. H wite taught music to a few planc studsnts as well.

Unon the veagusst of St

Montana district velsased

Fyom mer
tramsferved to the Minnesota distvict of Lhe Hisconsin Synod on
fApril &, 1930. The Dakota Montana District had been organized in
June of 1920. In that same veavy the church was veshingled in the
spring and plans besgan to redecorate the inside. On  June 14,
1931 the congregation held a2 special smevvice of thanksgiving upon
the completion of their redecoration.

The congregation obserwved its 50th anniverssyy on June 4,
1934 . Three services were held with & different gusst speaker at
aach . PFrofessor

Carl The Golden

anniwversary book was comnoiled and printed for bthe ococasion.

Finally the time cams when Pastor Bade mowed on. H

Lg

accented a call to Fseland, Movith Dakoba in September of L1937,

Y

He preached his farewell sevrmon on the 26th. By the fLimse he left
most of the serwvices held in Balaton weve in English.

t.

s

That completes the history of the first 0 wvears at

Peter s  luthevan Chuvch in Balaton Minnesoba. God had  blessed
his Church on the praivie richly in those vesrs. From its small
lowly beginnings wp to 1937 he blessed 3St. Peter’s Lutheran

Church with faithful, talesnted pastors who administered his Word

8

With oare and concarn. The Holy Spivit used that Word to bles



the hearts and liwves of his faithful ssrwants bevond compars.

St. Peter’s continues to blessed today swven with the
Failing health of thelr ocurvent pastor, Dals avndt. Despite the
har«d times of drought in the 19%80°s many of the members vemained.
The school atb this time is staffed once again by two teachers,

Alan Spurgin and Mrs. Jov Qwens. For sewerval wvears they only had

U T S SO TR T SRS S .
2 bo showsy his vich blessings  on

O The Lovd suvely oonb i

his  churach. Teo God alone be the gloryl I wmyay that the Lord

continves Lo hold hiz hand o ing ower his sheso in Balaton,

Minnesota .

o]
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